

ANALYSIS

This ordinance amends Title 5 – Personnel and Title 6 – Salaries of the Los Angeles County Code by:

- Amending Section 5.36.075 to make a technical correction related to life insurance for Retirement Plan E members;
- Amending Section 6.12.070 to update the accrual and usage limitations for sick personal leave; and
- Amending Sections 6.18.020, 6.18.080, 6.20.010, 6.20.020, 6.20.025, and 6.20.030 to update obsolete terminology related to leave accruals.

DAWYN R. HARRISON
County Counsel

By *Pouya Bavafa*
POUYA BAVAF
Senior Deputy County Counsel
Labor & Employment Division

PB:av

Requested: 4/19/24
Revised: 5/14/24

ORDINANCE NO. _____

An ordinance amending Title 5 – Personnel and Title 6 – Salaries of the Los Angeles County Code, relating to: (1) a technical correction regarding life insurance for Retirement Plan E members; (2) updating the accrual and usage limitations for sick personal leave; and (3) updating obsolete terminology related to leave accruals.

The Board of Supervisors of the County of Los Angeles ordains as follows:

SECTION 1. Section 5.36.075 is hereby amended to read as follows:

5.36.075 Retirement Plan E Life Insurance.

Effective with the implementation of Retirement Plan E, in addition to the life insurance specified in Section 5.36.070, the County will pay the premium for an \$~~438~~438,000.00 group term life insurance plan for all employees enrolled in Retirement Plan E who are:

- A. Permanent, full-time (designated as A, L, N, D, Z in Section 6.28.020 of this code);
- B. Paid by the county on a full-time basis while working for the county in an official training program of at least one (1) year's duration (designated as M in Section 6.28.020 of this code).

SECTION 2. Section 6.12.070 is hereby amended to read as follows:

6.12.070 Sick Personal for ~~e~~Certain ~~†~~Temporary and ~~r~~Recurrent ~~e~~Employees.

- A. Sick Personal Leave (Payable).

1. Eligibility. Employees holding temporary or recurrent positions who are employed in classifications approved by the Board shall be eligible for Sick Personal Leave (Payable) pursuant to the provisions of this section. For purposes of this section, a "temporary or recurrent position" is any position designated as an hourly as-needed item ("F" item) or an hourly recurrent item ("H" item) pursuant to Section 6.28.020.

2. Earning and Accrual of Sick Personal Leave. An eligible employee shall earn Sick Personal Leave (Payable) to a maximum of ~~eighty 48~~(80) hours based on the accrual rate of one (1) hour of Sick Personal Leave for every ~~thirty~~ (30) hours worked. Sick Personal Leave (Payable) shall be credited to the employee on a per pay period basis. Sick Personal Leave (Payable) is defined as payable upon termination of employment and hours may be paid in lieu of carrying over such hours to the subsequent year.

3. Use of Sick Personal Leave (Payable). ~~Twenty-four~~Forty (40) hours of accrued Sick Personal Leave (Payable) may be taken off per calendar year, subject to prior approval from Management during the calendar year in which it was credited to the employee or thereafter for personal reasons pursuant to County Code Section 6.20.030 A(2). Sick Personal Leave (Payable) may also be taken for the purpose of attending to the employee's own health care and health care of family members as defined in Section 6.20.080, Bereavement Leave in the County Code, as well as what is defined in California Labor Code Section 245.5 (which includes adopted or foster children, stepchildren, legal wards or children to whom the employee stands in loco parentis, a biological, adoptive, or foster parent, stepparent, or legal guardian of an

employee or the employee's spouse or registered domestic partner, or a person who stood in loco parentis when the employee was a minor child). Departmental requirements for prior approval will be applied only to the extent practicable.

4. Pay for Unused Sick Personal (Payable). An employee may, at his/her option, be paid for up to three (3) Sick Personal Leave (Payable) days, which total twenty-four (24 hours) hours, in lieu of carrying over such days, if the employee uses no Sick Personal Leave (Payable) for any reason. Sick Personal Leave (Payable) shall be paid at the employee's workday rate of pay in effect at the time of payment. The remaining balance of days or the full balance of days may be carried over to the following year.

B. Sick Personal Leave (Non-Payable).

1. Eligibility. Any employee who does not earn either sick leave, nonelective leave, or special paid leave, which includes an employee who is employed exclusively on a per clinic, consultation or visit ("G" item) or per session ("J" item), or part-time as defined by 1/5 time ("P" item), 1/4 time ("Q" item), 5/16 time ("R" item), 1/3 time ("S" item), or 2/5 time ("T" item) basis shall be eligible for Sick Personal Leave (Non-Payable).

2. Earning and Accrual of Sick Personal Leave. An eligible employee shall earn Sick Personal Leave (Non-Payable) to a maximum of eighty 48(80) hours based on the accrual rate of one (1) hour of Sick Personal Leave for every thirty (30) hours worked. Sick Personal Leave (Non-Payable) shall be credited to the employee on a per pay period basis. Sick Personal Leave (Non-Payable) may be carried over to any subsequent year. Sick Personal Leave (Non-Payable) is defined as not payable

upon termination of employment and hours may not be paid in lieu of carrying over such hours to the subsequent year.

3. Use of Sick Personal Leave (Non-Payable). ~~Twenty-four~~Forty (40) hours of accrued Sick Personal leave (Non-Payable) may be taken off per calendar year, subject to prior approval of Management during the calendar year in which it was credited to the employee or thereafter for personal reasons pursuant to County Code Section 6.20.030 A(2). Sick Personal Leave (Non-Payable) may also be taken for the purpose of attending to the employee's own health care and health care of family members as defined in County Code Section 6.20.080, Bereavement Leave in the County Code, as well as what is defined in California Labor Code Section 245.5 (which includes adopted or foster children, stepchildren, legal wards or children to whom the employee stands in loco parentis, or a biological, adoptive, or foster parent, stepparent, or legal guardian of an employee or the employee's spouse or registered domestic partner, or a person who stood in loco parentis when the employee was a minor child). Departmental requirements for prior approval will be applied only to the extent practicable.

SECTION 3. Section 6.18.020 is hereby amended to read as follows:

6.18.020 Definitions.

The following terms, when used in this Chapter 6.18 with initial capital letters, shall have the following meanings, unless the context clearly indicates otherwise:

...

H. "Vacation Years of Service" means the number of years of County service that an employee has acquired for vacation accrual purposes. Vacation Years of

Service are determined by taking the difference between the employee's ~~continuous service~~leave progression start date and the current date and then rounding down to the nearest full year. Effective with the pay period ending April 15, 2012, the Vacation Years of Service are determined by taking the difference between the employee's Leave Progression start date and the current date and then rounding down to the nearest full year.

SECTION 4. Section 6.18.080 is hereby amended to read as follows:

6.18.080 Time for Taking Vacations.

...

C. Vacation hours earned by an Eligible Employee pursuant to this Chapter 6.18 may not be taken off or paid off at separation from service until the employee has completed one year of service, based on the employee's ~~continuous service~~leave progression start date, or, for an otherwise eligible employee without a ~~continuous service~~leave progression start date, the employee's latest hire date.

...

SECTION 5. Section 6.20.010 is hereby amended to read as follows:

6.20.010 Definitions.

The following terms, when used in this Chapter 6.20 with initial capital letters, shall have the following meanings, unless the context clearly indicates otherwise:

...

J. "Sick Leave Years of Service" means the number of years of county service that an employee has acquired for sick-leave accrual purposes. For permanent employees, Sick Leave Years of Service are determined by taking the difference

between the employee's ~~continuous service~~ leave progression start date and the current date and then rounding down to the nearest full year. For recurrent and temporary employees, the Sick Leave Years of Service are determined by taking the difference between the latest hire date and the current date and rounding down to the nearest full year.

K. "Workday Hours" means the number of paid hours in a month for a monthly employee, based on eight (8) hours per day times the number of scheduled work days in the month.

SECTION 6. Section 6.20.020 is hereby amended to read as follows:

6.20.020 Accrual of ~~f~~Full-~~p~~Pay ~~s~~Sick ~~l~~Leave.

...

D. For employees assigned to a forty (40)-hour workweek who are authorized to accrue ninety-six (96) hours, or for employees assigned to a fifty-six (56)-hour shift who are authorized to accrue one hundred forty four (144) hours, the maximum hours of sick leave that can be accrued each calendar year is also based on the employee's Sick Leave Years of Service, as reflected by the employee's ~~continuous service~~ leave progression start date, or, for an employee without a ~~continuous service~~ leave progression start date, the employee's latest hire date.

...

SECTION 7. Section 6.20.025 is hereby amended to read as follows:

**6.20.025 Transition from ~~f~~Full-~~p~~Pay ~~s~~Sick ~~l~~Leave ~~p~~Provisions in ~~e~~Effect
~~p~~Prior to March 1, 1993.**

A. For employees with a ~~continuous-service~~leave progression start date of July 1, 1986, or later, whose sick leave earnings are credited to them at the beginning of each month based on active service in the preceding month, the last such crediting shall be given on March 1, 1993. On that day, the accrual by pay period as set forth in Section 6.20.020A begins for these employees, and employees will be credited with such additional sick leave, if any, they would have received based on the application of the relevant Sick-Leave Accrual Rate to qualifying hours as if the accrual began on January 1, 1993.

B. For employees with a ~~continuous-service~~leave progression start date earlier than July 1, 1986, who receive sick leave earnings in advance at the beginning of each year, the last such crediting shall be given on January 1, 1993. On January 1, 1994, the accrual by pay period as set forth in Section 6.20.020A begins for these employees. In addition, on January 1, 1994, each of these employees shall be granted a number of hours of special full-pay sick leave on a one-time-only basis. The number of hours to be granted shall be equal to the Sick Leave Maximum Hours approved for the employee's class pursuant to subsections B or C of Section 6.20.020 as of January 1, 1994. The special sick leave granted on January 1, 1994 pursuant to this section is usage-only sick leave, and any of it which remains unused when the employee terminates county service shall not be eligible for payment pursuant to Section 6.20.030B. Further, this special sick leave may not be used until all other one

hundred (100) percent Current Sick Leave, and all one hundred (100) percent Carryover Sick Leave, other than that accumulated prior to January 1, 1971, has been exhausted.

SECTION 8. Section 6.20.030 is hereby amended to read as follows:

6.20.030 Full-pPay ~~s~~Sick ~~L~~Leave ~~s~~Special ~~p~~Provisions.

...

B. Upon termination from County service, an employee who holds a permanent full-time position and who has at least five (5) years of continuous service shall receive payment for accumulated sick leave at full pay to a maximum of seven hundred twenty (720) working hours, or in the case of employees assigned to a fifty-six (56)-hour workweek schedule, to a maximum of one thousand eighty (1,080) working hours. Such payment as provided in Section 6.24.040 shall be computed at the workday hourly rate of pay in effect on the employee's final day of County service, and shall be equal to the total time which results from the sum of:

1. All unused sick leave at full pay accumulated prior to January 1, 1971; plus either:
2. For an employee with a ~~continuous service~~ leave progression start date of July 1, 1986, or later: one-half of all unused sick leave at full pay accumulated on or after January 1, 1971; or
3. For an employee with a ~~continuous service~~ leave progression start date earlier than July 1, 1986:
 - a. One-half of all Carryover Sick Leave at full pay accumulated on or after January 1, 1971, plus

b. One-half of the Sick Leave Maximum Hours authorized for the employee's class at the time of termination, less any Current Sick Leave taken.

...

Section 9. Pursuant to Government Code section 25123, this ordinance shall take effect thirty (30) days from the date of final passage, except that Section 2 shall be construed and applied as if were effective and operative on and after January 1, 2024.

[536075DCCEO]